"HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LIMITED

3, J. B. 5. HALDEN AVENUE, (Formerly E. M. Bye Pass).
1st Floor, 'SILVER ARCADE', KOLKATA - 700 105
Telefax : 2251-7051 / 7054 / 7055, E-mail : as2909@rediffmail. com
CIN : L51226WB1954PLC022034

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 72™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Members of Hindusthan Tea &
Trading Company Limited will be held at the Registered Office of the company at 5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,
Silver Arcade, 1™ Floor, Kolkata 700105 on Saturday, 28" day of September, 2019 at 11.00 AM. to
iransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31* March
2019, Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet as on that date and the Reports of the Directors and the
Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appoint a Directar in place of Mr. Mancj Kumar Bhagat (DIN NO. 00088842) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board of Directors
5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue, For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited
Silver Arcade, 1* Floor, e
A 3

Kolkata-700105 [ g
Date: 28" May 2019

Manoj Kumar Bhagat Ashwin Shantilal Mehta

(DIN 00088842) (DIN 00029884)

Director Director




NOTES

1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and in the aggregate
not more than 10% of total share capital of the company carrying voting right. A member holding more
than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting right may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy of any other person or shareholder.

The Registers of the Members and the Share Transfer Books of the company will remain closed from
23" September 2019 to 28" September 2019 (both days inclusive).

Proxies in order to be valid must be deposited with the Company at its Registered Office not less than
48 hours before the Meeting.

Members/Proxies should bring their Attendance Slip send herewith duly filled in for attending the
Meeting,

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy of
the relevant Board Resolution authaorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote at the Meeting, if not already voted through remote e-voting.

Information about the Directors proposed to be appointed / reappointed as stipulated under Clause 49 of
Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange in India, are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance
forming part of the Annual Report. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the
appointments/ reappointments of such Directors,

Members desirous of obtaining any information as regards Accounts and Operations of the Company
are requested to write at least one week before the Meeting so that the same could be complied in
advance.




"HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LIMITED

3, J. B. 5. HALDEN AVENUE, (Formerly E. M. Bye Pass),
1st Floor, 'SILVER ARCADE', KOLKATA - 700 105
Telefax : 2251-7051 / 7054 / 7055, E-mail : as2909@rediffmail.com
CIN : L51226WB1954PLC022034

To
The Members,
Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 72™ Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statement
for the Year Ended 31% March 2018.

Pursuant to notification dated 16" February, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopted the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) with
effect from 1% April, 2018 and the accounts are prepared under Ind AS.

1. Financial Results

For the Year Forthe Year

Particulars ended March ended March
31,2019 31,2018
4] 4]

Profit / (Loss) before tax 48,96,182 54.48,717
Less: Tax adjustment for current year 10,92,200 10,63,600
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement 16,861 (16.861)
Less: Tax Adjustment of Earlier Years (3,386) (23,220)
Less: Deferred tax 5,582 {3,750}
MNet Profit after Tax 37,884,925 44,283,948
Less: Other Comprehensive Income MIL (27.000)
MNet Comprehensive Income for the year 37.84,925 44,01,948
Balance B/f. from Last Year 3,46826 107 3.02,24 159
Carried Forwarded to Next Year 3,84,11,032 3,46,26,107

2. Dividend

The Directors of your Company do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019
in order to plough back the resources for future growth.

3. Operation and Business Activities
The Company recorded operational revenue of ¥ 60,85,882/- as compared to ¥ 60,36,416/- during the
previous financial year. The Company achieved earning before taxation T 48,96,182/- as compared to
¥ 54,48,717/- during the previous financial year. Net profit after taxation is ¥ 37,84,925/- against
T 44,28 948/- of the previous financial year,

The Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 / Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

4. Changes in the Nature of Business
During the period under review, there is no change in the nature of business.
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10.

11.

12

Share Capital

There was no change in the issued ad subscribed capital of the Company. The paid-up capital of the
Company as on 31% March 2019 stands at T 24,50,000/- divided into 2,45,000 shares of ¥ 10/- each.

Dwuring the year under review, the Company has neither bought back any of its securities nor issued any
shares with the differential voting right or issued swat equity share or issued Bonus share or granted stock
option scheme to the employee.

Transfer to Reserve
The Company has not transferred any amount io the General Reserve for the financial year ended 31
March, 20189,

Corporate Governance

The Company makes due compliance of Corporate Governance guidelines and requirements of the Listing
Regulations. In compliance with Regulations 17 to 22 and Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a
separate report on Corporate Governance, along with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors confirming the
compliance of Corporate Governance requirements is annexed as Annexure-A to this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis
A statement on management discussion and analysis with detailed highlights of performance of different
divisions /segments of the Company is annexed as Annexure-B to this report

Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or an Associate Company as on 31* March 2019,
Hence, requirement of consclidated financial statement is not applicable to the Company.

Public Deposit
Curing the peried under report, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

Directors

The Company is well supported by the knowledge and experience of its Directors and Executives. Pursuant to
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Shri. Mancj Kumar
Bhagat, (holding DIN: 00088842) Director of the Company, is liable to retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offers himself for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the re-appointment of Shri. Manoj Kumar Bhagat, as
Director of the Company.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as
Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and not debarred or disqualified by the SEEI /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority from being appointed or continuing as Director of
the Company or any other Company where such Director holds such position in terms of Regulation (10)(i) of
Part C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time), Shri
Manoj Kumar Bhagat and Shri Ashwin Shantilal Mehta, who was already holding the position of Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer of the Company continues to be in same designation. No other
Key Managerial Personnel has been appeointed /resigned during the year.

Ms. Priyanka Mohta has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the company w.e.f 01.06.2019 at
meeting of Board of Directors held on 28.05.20189,




13. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

14.

15.

16

17

.

In terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), in relation to financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31% March, 2019, the Board of Directors states that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards read with requirements set
out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the
same,

b} they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and the profit of the company for that peried;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the Annual Accounts [ financial statement on a going concern basis,
g) they have laid down proper internal financial controls are in place and are operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

Considering the size of the company and volume of activities during the year under review, no major step was
taken by the company towards Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption. But the Company has
carried cut a close monitoring of the electricity consumption during the year and it aims to stop excessive and
unnecessary consumption of electricity. Further there was no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the
year under review,

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, Affecting the Financial Position

There is no such material change and commitment affecting the financial position of your Company which
have occumred between the end of the financial year of your Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements. There have
been no investments made or guarantees given under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
year under review.

Internal Auditor

During the year under review, M/s. Lodha & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the internal auditors of the
Company conducted periodic audits of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the detailed Internal Audit
reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and takes stock of the actions taken on observations of and
recommendations made by them.

Your directors are confident that there are adequate internal control systems and procedures which are being
followed and complied with,
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20.

Related Party Transaction

Curing the F.¥. 2018-19, the Company has entered into transactions with related parties as defined under
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules,
2014, all of which were in the ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis and in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued there under and as per Listing
Regulations.

All transaction with the related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The details of
the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -24 are set out in Note no. 26(4)(b)
to the Financial Statement forming part of this Annual report.

Further, there were no transactions with related parties which qualify as material transactions under the
Listing Regulations. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted
and hence Form AQC-2 is not applicable.

Auditors and Auditor's Reports

A. Statutory Auditors & Auditor Report

As per the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013
{including any statutory modification(s) or re—enactment thereof, for the time being in force) at the 70™ Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 23™ September, 2017, the Members of the Company had appointed
M/s. Bavishi & Bavishi Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number: 322504E), as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the offi ice for a term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of 70"
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 75" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022.

Further the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 7" May, 2018 has done away with the
requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual General Meeting, as per the
first proviso of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment
Rules, 2018.Accordingly, the Company is not required to pass any resolution pertaining to ratification of the
appointment of Statutory Auditors in the Annual General Meeting.

The Statutory Auditors' report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and is self-
explanatory and unmadified and thus does not require any further clarifications/ comments. The Statutory
Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company during the year
under review

B. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed Shri Pradip Domadia,
Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 3806 & C.P.No: 3867), as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for the F.Y. 2018-19 to conduct Secretarial Audit and the Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3
was furnished by him, The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure-C to this report. The
Secretarial Auditors’ report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and is self-
explanatory and thus does not require any further clarifications/comments.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Beard and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not fall
within purview of Section 135{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required to formulate policy
on corporate social responsibility.

. Meetings of the Board

8 (Six) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the F.¥Y. 2018-19. The details of the meetings of
the Board / Committees of the Board, are given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of
this report.

Audit Committee

During the F.Y. 2018-19, the Committee consisted three Directors of the Company viz. Shri Dharmesh Mehta
(Chairman), Shri Ashwin Shantilal Mehta and Shri Manoj Kumar Bhagat, Members of the Audit Committee, As
per Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, the Board has accepted all
the recommendations of the Audit Committee during the F.Y. 2018-19.

Risk Management
Given the asset base and the portfolio of investments made by the Company, the Board is of the opinion that
there are no major risks affecting the existence of the Company

Momination and Remuneration Committee

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not
applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to appointment of
Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars of Employees
The Company had no employee during the year covered under Rule 5(2) of the Companies {(Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company formulated and laid down criteria for
Performance Evaluation of the Board (including Committees) and every Director (including Independent
Directors) pursuant to provisions of Section 134, Section 148 read with Code of Independent Directors
(Schedule 1V) and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the revised Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The manner in which the evaluation is carried out has been explained in
the Corporate Governance Section forming part of this Report.

Listing of Shares
The equity share of the Company continues to be listed at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited.
The Annual Listing Fees for the financial year 2019-20 has been paid to the said stock exchange

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has adopted Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in
accordance with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company has not received any Complaints pertaining
to Sexual Harassment Py B




30.

Declaration of Independence

The Company has received necessary declarations from each of the Independent Directors under Section

148(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(8) of

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)(b} & 25 of the Listing Regulations and also in the opinion of

the Board and as confirmed by these Directors, they fulfill the conditions specified in Section 149 of the

gﬂmpanies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there-under about their status as Independent Directors of the
ompany.

31. Extract of Annual Return
As required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the extracts of Annual Return in Form No.
MGT-9 iz annexed herewith as Annexure-D to this report.

32. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operations were observed.

33. Significant / Material Orders Passed By The Regulators
There were no significant / material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status of the Company’s and its operations in future,

34. Acknowledgement
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the timely support and co-ordination given fo the
Company by its Bankers and all those who have directly/indirectly contributed to the Company’s progress and
above all you, the shareholders of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited
J_H("S,,q
vt I
Place: Kolkata Manoj Kumar Bhagat Ashwin Shantilal Mehta

Date: 28" May 2019 Director (DIN: 00088842} Director (DIN: 00029884)




ANNEXURE - A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT:
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance:

The Company’s core business is the cultivation, production and trading of tea & sale, lease and
let on hire land, real estate, property of Company.

2. Board of Directors — Composition:
The Board of Directors is at the Core of our Corporate Governance Practice and oversees how
the management serves and protects the long term interest of our stakeholders.

Selection of New Directors:
The Nomination and Remuneration committee works with the Board to determine the
appropriate qualification, positive attributes, skills and experience for the Board as a whole with

diverse background and experience in business.

Composition of the Board & Directorship held as on 31° March 2019:

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER
COMPANIES
RAREEIOR Category Member Board Committee
of Board | Chairman | Member

Mr. Ashwin Shantilal Mehta Executive Promoter
(DIN: 00029884) Director NIl il ML
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat Executive Promoter 2 NIL NIL
(DIN: 00088842) Director
Mr. Amritansh Bhagat Non — Executive 1 NIL NIL
(DIN: 00411898) Director
Mr. Dharmesh Mehta Non — Executive
(DIN: 02482214) Independent Director | - L i
Ms. Archana Sharma Non - Executive 1 NIL NIL
(DIN: 07137760) Independent Director

** Only Public Limited Companies have been considered.

Board Meetings & Annual General Meeting (AGM):

During the year under review, Six Board Meetings were held, the dates being 30" May 2018, 28"

July 2018, 01* October 2018, 03™ November 2018, 02™ February 2019 & 29" March 2019..

The last AGM was held on 29" September 2018.

£




Details of Attendance

Board Meetin Attended at the
Director Held Held EstAnnul
During | During the | Attended General
the year tenure Meeting
Mr. Ashwin Shantilal Mehta 6 6 6 _YES
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat 6 6 6 YES
Mr. Amritansh Bhagat 6 6 6 NO
Mr. Dharmesh Mehta 6 3] 6 YES
Ms. Archana Sharma 6 6 6 YES

Independent Directors:

The Company has complied with the definition of Independence as per Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and according to the Provisions of Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. A formal
letter of appointment has been issued to the Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the
Companies Act, 2013.

3. Audit Committee :

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of
the management, financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the
highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The committee oversees
the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the management and the statutory auditors
and notes the process and safeguards employed by each of them.

The Audit committee is comprised of three Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee has in
depth knowledge in the areas of Accounts, Taxation, Law and Administration.

During the year under review, four meetings of the Audit committee were held, the dates being 30"
May 2018, 2gh July 2018, 03 November 2018, and 02™ February 2019. The composition and
attendance at the Audit committee meetings are as follows:

Director No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Dharmesh Mehta, Chairman 4
Mr. Ashwin Shantilal Mehta 4
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat £




4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee :

The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is the oversee the Company's
nomination process for the senior management and recommending to the Board the remuneration
package of Managing / Whole-time Director & senior executive of the Committee, including annual
increment to them. The Composition and attendance at committee meeting during the year ended

31.03.2019 is as follows:

Director

MNo. of Meeting Attended

Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat

1

| Mr. Ashwin Shantilal Mehta

1

' Mr. Amritansh Bhagat

1

The Committee has met on 28.03.2018 during the year.

Shareholders’ | Investors®’ Grievance Committee:

The composition and attendance at Committee meeting during the year ended 31* March, 2019 is

as follows.
Director No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat, Chairman 1
Mr. Ashwin Shantilal Mehta 1
| Mr. Amritansh Bhagat 1

The Committee has met on 28.03.2019 during the year.
No Complaint has been received from Shareholders during the year.

Name and designation of Compliance Officer:
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat, Director.

5. General Body Meetings:

Location and time where last three AGMs were held:

Date Location Time
5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,
24" September 2016 | Silver Arcade, 1* Floor, 11.00 A.M.

Kolkata 700105

5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,

23" September 2017 | Silver Arcade, 1% Floor, 11.00 A.M.
Kolkata 700105
5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,

29" September 2018 Silver Arcade, 1* Floor, 11.00 A.M.

Kolkata 700105

No other General Meeting were held in course of the last three years.




6.

Other Disclosures :

Related party transactions:

A.

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions:

Details of related party transactions as specified in Accounting Standard 18 of the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 have been reported in the Note No 26(4)(b) attached to the
Financial Statement.

The Company has entered into transactions with some of its related parties but that are not in
potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

Mo penalties/strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange, SEBI or any
regulatory authority for non-compliance of any laws on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years.

The revised Clause 49 of the Listing agreement consists of mandatory and non-mandatory
requirements. The Company is compliant with the mandatory clause.

The Board and the Audit Committee review adoption of non-mandatory requirements and will
have the same in place at an appropriate time. There is no formal whistle blower policy but no
person is denied access to the Audit Committee or to make any reference.

Means of Communication :

a) Mo half-yearly report is sent to the shareholders directly.

b) Quarterly results, Half-yearly results and Annual results are generally published in
newspapers.

c) Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Directors’ Report.

d) No formal presentation has been made to institutional investors or analysis during the year.

Shareholder Information :

(a) AGM Date, Time and Venue:
Saturday, 28" September 2019 at 11 A.M.
at 5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue, Silver Arcade, 1% Floor, Kolkata 700105

{b) Book Closure Date :
Monday 23" September 2019 to Saturday 28™ September 2019, both days inclusive

(c) Listing on Stock Exchange :
The Company’s securities are listed at:
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700 001

Stock Exchange Stock Code
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. 10018124




(d) Stock Price Data: Year 2018-19
There were no transaction in the equity shares of the Company listed at The Calcutta Stock
Exchange, hence there is no monthly high and low quotations and volumes of shares traded
on the Stock Exchange during the year.

(e) Stock Performance :
Company’s Share Price in relation to CSE SENSEX: (April 2018 to March 2019) N.A.

(f) Share Transfer System:
The Company's shares are compulsory traded in the demat form for all categories of
shareholders. The Company has an In-house Share transfer department and all transfers are
debited / credited through the respective Accounts of the members maintained with their
Depository Participants (DPs). In case of physical transfer of shares, the shares are
transferred within 15 days from the date of receipt.

{g) Dematerialisation of Shares:
Mone of the Shares has been dematerialized as on 31.03.2019.

i. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2019

Group of No. of o, No. of % of Total
Shares Shareholders Shares held Shares
1 to 50 37 49 34 1850 0.76
51 to 1000 10 13.33 | 5000 2.04
1001 to 4000 1 1.33 3800 1.55
4001 to 8000 12 16.00 76700 31.31
8001 and above 15 20.00 157650 64.34
Total 75 100.00 245000 100.00




ii. Shareholding pattern as at 31°' March, 2019

No. of No. of Shares % of
Category Shareholders held Shareholding
Resident Individuals 63 215000 87.76
Directors & their relatives & 29400 12.00
Bodies Corporate 8 600 0.24
Total 75 245000 100.00

ili. Address of Correspondence:

5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,

Silver Arcade, 1* Floor,
Kolkata 700105

e-mail: as2909@rediffmail.com, contact@hindusthantea.com

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28" May 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.

et

94

Manoj Kumar Bhagat
Director (DIN: 00088842)

Ashwin Shantilal Mehta
Director (DIN: 000293884)




ANNEXURE — B TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT:
MAMANGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

During the year 2018-19, the company has let out its property to Body Corporate with marginal
increase in rent than in previous year. This has resulted in increase in profit in comparison to
previous year.

Corporate Governance & Internal Control System
The Company is complying with the norms laid down in Clause 49 of the Stock Exchange Listing
agreement on Corporate Governance. Some of the key mandatory compliances in place are:

The Audit Committee consisted of Directors well versed in financial aspects.

The Audit committee had met formally during the committee meetings as well as separately with the
Statutory Auditors. It reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements analyzed intemnal
control systems and other activities’ as per the terms of reference. In respect of non-mandatory
clauses, the Company have a Remuneration committee which ensures finalization of all issues
related to the employees, if any, in the interest of the Company.

Financials
The internal surplus funds generated by the Company are being fully utilized to diversified activities
of the Company giving encouraging returns on investment.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.
~F.

Place: Kolkata Manoj Kumar Bhagat
Date: 28" May 2019 Director (DIN: 00088842)




PRADIP DOMADIA Vaishnawi Apartment
COMPANY SECRETARIES 33A Kalidas Patitundi Lane,
Kolkata - 700 026
(M) 98302 30035
(E] domp_52@vahoo.co.in

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF
INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,
2015 BY HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

To
The Members of
Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited

1. 1 have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by
Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited for the year ended 31st March,
2019, as stipulated in relevant provisions of SERI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Company's Management. My examination was limited to the procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has generally complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under various regulations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4. I state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31st
March, 2019, no grievances are pending for a period of exceeding one month against
the Company as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to the
Investors Grievance Committec.

2. 1 further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Q’f OO Lol o

FRADIP DOMADIA
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem no. 3806 CP No. 3867

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28t May, 2019




CERTIFICATION BY CEO AND CFO TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To,
The Board of Directors,
Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited

In pursuance to Regulation 17({8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
We, Manoj Kumar Bhgat, Chief Financial Officer (C.F.0.) and Ashwin Shantilal Mehta, Chief Executive Officer
(C.E.0.) to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March, 2019 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact nor contain
statement that might be misleading;

(b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with the existing Accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, there were no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which were fraudulent illegal or which violated the Company’s Code of Conduct.
3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have:

(a) evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting;

(b} not found any deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls.

4. We have indicated to the Company’s Auditors and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors that:

{(a) there is no significant changes that have occurred in the internal control over financial reporting during
the year;;

{b) there have been no significant changes in accounting polices during the year;.

(c) there have been no instances of significant fraud nor there was any involvement of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting;
and

(d) there were no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which could adversely affect
the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data nor there were any
material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting nor any corrective actions with regards
to deficiencies, as there were none.

5. We declare that all Board members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with the

Code of Conduct for the current year.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Hindusthan Tea & TradingCo. Ltd.

e

Place: Kolkata Manoj Iﬁar Bhagat Ashwin Shantilal Mehta
Date: 28" May 2019 Chief Financial Officer = Chief Executive Office
(DIN: 00088842) (DIN: 00029884)
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4]

To,

The Members,

Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited
5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,

Silver Arcade, 15t Floor,

Kolkata:-700 105

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Hindusthan Tea &
Trading Company Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (a statutory body constituted under the Company
Secretaries Act, 1980) and in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
eva}uatmg the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Eua;’ré: beesses and  compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manne ¢ct to the reporting made
hereinafter:




PRADIP DOMADIA Vaishnawi Apartment

COMPANY SECRETARIES 33A Kalidas Patitundi Lane,
Kolkata - 700 026

(M) 98302 30035

(E) domp_52@yahoo.co.in

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2019 according to the applicable provisions of-

1i.

1ii.

v,

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 [[SCRA’] and the Rules made
thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder (not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period],

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period).

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act) (to the extent applicable to the
Company).-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers] Regulations, 2011; (not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Eegulations, 1992;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2009: fnot applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999: (not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 - (not applicable to the Chmpariy during the Audit
Period); : '




PRADIP DOMADIA Vaishnawi Apartment
COMPANY SECRETARIES 33A Kalidas Patitundi Lane,
Kolkata - 700 026

(M) 98302 30035
(E) domp_52@yahoo.co.in

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 — the in-house investor service
centre of the Company provides share registration and related services;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 — fnot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of securities)
Regulations, 1998 — (not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
with respect to board and general meetings.

b) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Fequirements) Regulations,
2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review are carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda are sent at least seven days in advance and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

5 DOM

e

Majority decision is carried through while the Disse
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.



PRADIP DOMADIA Vaishnawi Apartment
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, Rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has not incurred any
specific event/action that can have major bearing on the Company's affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

Encl: Annexure ‘A’ forming an integral part of this report

PN esalion -

PRADIP DOMADIA
ompany Secretary in Practice
FCS No. 3806 CP No. 3867

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28™ May 2019
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members,

Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited
5, J.B.S. Halden Avenue,

Silver Arcade, 1% Floor,

Kolkata:-700 105

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 315t March, 2019 of even
date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility:

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain the
Secretarial records and to devise proper systems to ensure compliance of all
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively. The Compliance of the provisions of the Act, and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management.

Responsibility of Secretarial Auditor:

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:;

4. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

5. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and

Books of Accounts of the Company e
e "'\\ b, |

PRADIP DOMADIA
Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No. 3806 CP No. 3867

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28t May 2019




Annexure - D to the Director's Report
Extract of Annual Retumn

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.201%

Pursuant to Section 32 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,

|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 |CIN L51226WB1954PLC022034
2 |Registration Cate 21121954
3 [Mame of the Company HINGUSTHAN TEA & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
4  |Category/Sub-categary of the Company Public Company
Limited by Shares

5 |Address of the Registered office & contact details

§,JB.5. HALDEN AVENUE,
SILVER ARCADE, 15T FLOOR, KOLKATA 700103
TEL NC. 033-22517051; FAX NO. 033-22517051

Whather listed company

YES, LISTED O THE CALCUTTA STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

Name, Address & contact detailz of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
5, J.B.5. HALDEN AVENUE,

SILVER ARCADE, 15T FLOOR, KOLKATA 700105
TEL NO. 033-22517051; FAX NO. (33-22517051

||L PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(ANl the business activities contributing 10 % or mare of the total tumover of the company shall be stated)

5. No. Mame and Description of main products / senvicas NIC Code of the Productisenvice | % to total termover of the
company
1 |Real estate activities with own ar keased property 681 T6.57%
2 |Other financial service activifies, except insurance and pension funding 649 19,14%

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company is not having any Holding, Subsidiary and Assaciate Company, hence this claose is not applicable.

SH Name and address of the Company

CINIGLN Holding/ Subsidiary! Associate

% of Applicable
shares Section
held

MN.A.




|I"u". SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Categary of No. of Shares held ai the beginning of the year Nao. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Shareholders [As on 01-April-2018] [As on 31-March-2019] during the
Demal | Physica Total | %ofTold | Demat Physical Total | %oftorm |
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individuall HUF 0 20400 25400 12.00% ] 20400 20400 12.00% 0.00%
b) Central Gow a ] 0 0.00% Q ] 0 0.00% 0.00%
¢} State Govi(s) 0 0 0 0.00%: 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. 1] 0 1] 0.00% 1] 1] 0 0.00% 0.00%
&) Banks / Fl 0 1] 0 0.00%% 1] 1] 0 0.00% 0.00%
f &ny ather 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A} (1) 0 29400 29400 12.00% 0 29400 29400 12.00% 0.00%
(2} Foreign

a) MR Indnviduats 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
b} Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% (0.00%
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
d} Any ather 0 0 ] (0.00% ] 0 1] 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A} (2) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

TOTAL (A) 0 29400 29400 12.00% 0 29400 23400 12.00% 0.00%

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
b} Banks { Fl ] ] ] 0.00% 0 0 0 (.00 0.00%
) Ceniral Govt 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
d) State Gowis) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
&) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 il 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
f) Insurance Companies 0 ] ] 0.00% 0 ] ] 0.00% 0.00%
q) Flis 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Funds

i} Others (speciy) 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total {(B)(1):- 1] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%




Category of MNo. of Shares held at the beginning of the year Mo. of Shares held at the end of the year % Changs
Sharehaolders [As on 01-April-2018] [As on 31-March-2019) during the
Demat | Physical Tolal | %of To@l | Demal Physical Totdl | %otTotal | 1%
Shares Shares
2. Non-Institutions
&) Bodies Corp.
i} Indian ] B00 GO0 0.24% 600 600 0.24% 0.00%
i} Cverseas ] ] 1] 0.00% ] ] 0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals
i} Individual shareholders a 135330 135330 55.24% ] 135330 135330 55 A%  0.00%
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii} Individual 0 73670 TH570 3252% ] 79670 o670 J2.52%| 0.00%
shareholders holding
norminal share capital in
excass of Rs 1 lakh
) Others (specify)
Mon Resident Indians i Qa 0.00% ] i ] 0.00% 0.00%
Overseas Corporate 0 ] 0 0.00% 0 0 ] 0.00% 0.00%
Bodies
Foreign Mationals 0 n ] 0.00% 0 ] ] 0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Trusts 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies-D R i ] 0 0.00% i ] ] 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B){2):- 0 215600 215600 £8.00% 0 215800 215600 83.00% 0.00%
Total Public (B) 0 215600 215600 85.00% ] 215600 215600 B8.00% 0.00%
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0.00% ] 0 0.00% 0.00%
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) ] 245000 245000 100.00% 0 245000 245000 100.00% 0.00%
(ii} Shareholding of Promoter
SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Sharehalding at the end of the year % change in
(As on 01-04-2018) (As on 31-03-2019) shareholding
Mo. of Shares| % oflotal | % of Shares | Mo, of Shares % of fotal | % of Shares | during the
Sharesofthe| Pledged/ Shares ofthe | Pledged | yeak
company | encumbered company | encumbered
fo total 1o total
shares
1 MANOJ KUMAR BHAGAT 10200 4.16% 0.00% 10200 4.16% 0.00% 0.00%
2 GIRISH S MEHTA 500 0.20% 0.00% 500 0.20% 0.00% 0.00%
3 ASHWIN 5. MEHTA 10500 4.29% 0.00% 10500 4.29% 0.00% 0.00%
4 VANDANA BHAGAT B200 3.35% 0.00% 8200 3.35% 0.00% 0.00%
TOTAL 29400 12.00% 0.00% 29400 12.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Mot : There is no change in the tofal sharehaiting of promoters Detween 07-04-2078 and 31-03-2019




{iii) 'Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN Particulars Date Reason Sharsholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during fhe year
Mo. of shares % of total shares Mo, of shares % of total
shares
1 |MANOJ KUMAR BHAGAT
At the beginning of the year 10200 4 16% 10200 4 16%
Changes during the year [0 CHARGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.008% | MG CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 10200 4.16% 10200 4.16%
2 |GIRISHS MEHTA
At the beginning of the year 500 0.20% 500 0.20%
Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURBIG THE YEAR] (0005 | [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.00%
Al the end of the year 500 0.20% 200 0.20%
3 |ASHWIN 5. MEHTA
A the beginning of the year 10500 4.29% 10500 4.29%
Changes during the year [N CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] (,00% | [MC CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 10500 4.29% 10500 4. 29%
4 |VANDANA BHAGAT
At the baginning of the year 8200 3.35% 10500 4.25%
Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00% | NG CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.00%
Al the end of the year 8200 3.35% 8200 3.35%

Motz : There [ no changa in the toal sharehoiding betwaan 0-04-2018 and 37-03-2013

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | Foreach of the Top 10 Date Reason Shareholding al the baginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during the year
shareholders
Ma. of shares % of total shares Mo, of shares % of iotal
shares
1 |RASHMILODHA
At the beginning of the year 12000 4.50% 12000 4.90%
Changes during the year N CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00% | 40 CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 12000 4.90% 12000 4.90%
2 |DINESH MEHTA
At the beginning of the year 12000 4505 12000 4.90%
Changes during the year [N CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0L00%% | Mo CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 12000 4.90% 12000 4.30%
3 |PRADIF BAID
At the beginning of the year 115390 4.73% 11580 4.73%
Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.00% | O CHANGES DURNG THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 11530 4.73% 11590 473%




L SN
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
i

For each of the Top 10 Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Sharsholding during the year
shareholders
Mo. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of tolal
shares
GOUR] SHANKAR AGARWAL
At the beginning of the year 11580 4.73% 11580 4 73%
Changes during the year [NC CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.00%:] MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.00%
At the end of the year 11580 473% 11580 4 73%
UMANG GOENKA
Al the beginning of the year 10950 4.47% 10950 4.47%
Changes during the year [N CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%| HO CHAMCES DURRMG THE YEAR) 0.00%
At the end of the year 10950 4.47% 10950 4.47%
SIRISH TAPURLAH
At the beginning of the year 10500 4 45% 10800 4.45%
Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] CLD0% | oo CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 10800 4 455 10800 4.45%
JAY PRAKASH AGARWAL
Af the beginning of the year 10650 4.35% 10650 4.35%
Changes during the year [ CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%| MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 10650 4.35% 10650 4.35%
ANITA K. BARAI
At the beginning of the year 10000 4.08% 10000 4.08%
Changes during the year [0 CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00% | MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 10000 4.108% 10000 4.08%
ALOK KUMAR SOMANI
Al the beginning of the year 10000 4.08% 10000 4.08%
Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURSNG THE YEAR] 0.00%] MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 10000 4.08% 10000 4.08%
SURESH KUMAR DHANUKA
At the beginning of the year 10000 4 0B% 10000 4.08%
Changes during the year [N CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%| M0 CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Af the end of the vear 10000 4.08% 10000 4 8%

Kofe : Thare i no changs in [ha fol sharehokling befween 07-04-2018 snd 31-03-2015




{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Sharehalding during the year
Directors and each Key
e No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of lotal
shares
1 |MANOJ KUMAR BHAGAT
Al the beginning of the year 10200 4 16% 10200 4 16%
Changes during the year NG CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00% | (M0 CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 10200 4.16% 10200 4.16%
2 |ASHWIN 5. MEHTA
At the beginning of the year 10500 4.20% 10500 4 29%
Changes during the year N0 CHANGES DURING THE YEAR) 0.005% | MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 10500 4.29% 10500 4 2%
3 |AMRITANSH BHAGAT
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Changes during the year MO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%) NO CHANGES DURMG THE YEAR) 000
At the end of the year 0 0.00% ] 0.00%
4 |DHARMESH MEHTA
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Changes during Lhe year [ND CHANGES DURSNG THE YEAR) (0.00%] MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
Al the end of the year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
£ [ARCHANA SHARMA
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Changes during the year [MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%| MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR] 0.00%
At the end of the year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Nole : Thare is no change in he folal shareholkding Defween 07-04-2018 and 31-03-2013
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Mo amount has been outstanding at the year end, hence the following clause is not applicable.
[AmL Rs.J/Lacs)

Particulars

Securad Loans excluding
depaosits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amournt

i) Interest due but not paid

o

[ni) Interest accruad but not due

Total (i+i+ii}

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition

" Reduction

Met Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i} Principal Amaunt

if) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not dus

Total (i i)




|‘.ﬂ. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

No amount has been paid to any Directors during the year, hence the following clause is not applicable.

A. Remuneration to Managing Direclor, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager:

SN, Farticulars of Remuneration Mame of MOWTDV Manager Total
Amouni
Wama (Raflac)
Designation
1 |Gross salary A

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in saction 17(1) of the Income-tax /

Act, 1961 2

(b} Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 i

{c) Profits in liew of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1551 /
2 |Stock Opfion /

3 [Sweat Equity 7 =
Commission /,/ 4 =

4 - as % of profit / B

- others, specify s
5  [Others, please specify / :

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
ARCHANA SHARMA {RsiLac)

1 |independant Directors
Fee for attending board committee - z
Commission : LI -
Oihers, please spacify - / 5
Total (1) - 2 4 :

2 |Cther Non-Executive independent Directors / 3
Fee for attending board committee . a E
Commission : / S
Ofthers - Professional Fees 24,000.00 / 24.000.00
Total {2) 24,000.00 P - 24,000.00
Total (Bj=(1+2) a0000| 7 3 24,000.00
Tatal Managerial Remuneration 24,000.00

Owerall Ceiling as per the Act




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MDiManager™WTD

SN, Particulars of Remuneration Mame of Kay Managerial Personnel Total
Amount
Name (Rs/Lac)
Designation CEC CFO cs ]
1 |Gross salary |
(@) Salary as per provisions conizined in /
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 =
(b Value of permuisites u's 17(2) Income- / -
ic) Profits in liey of salary under section L
17(3) Incorme- tax Act, 1961 / -
2 |Stock Option / =
3 |Sweat Equity / .
Commission _aper
4 |- as % of profit / B
- olhers, specly / 3
5 |Others, please specify / -
Tolal L - = =
VIl. PENALTIES | PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section Brief Description Details of Penalty / Authority [RD [ NCLT! COURT] | Appeal made, if any (give
of the Punishment/ Details)
Compani Compounding fees
es Act imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compaunding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compaunding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Company Limited
FAR e
[
Flace: Kolkata Manoj Kumar Bhagat win Shantilal Mehta

Date : 28™ May, 2019

Director (DIN: 00088842)

Director (DIN: 00029884)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of
HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
< stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect
~ to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
scction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial
statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued
under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements  .in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)



of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accoun ting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March al,
2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report
that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been

kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement

of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

€] on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of
the Company as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of



Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Qur report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and'operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements.

il. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we

give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 322504E

(Proprie torship)
Membership No: 056459

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28/05/2019



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Referred to
in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Hindusthan Tea &

Trading Co. Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March
31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. | Those



Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's

internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the



company’'s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
cffectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 322504E

(Proprietorship)
Membership No: 056459

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28/05/2019



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Referred to

in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co.

Limited of even date)
1. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed
assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed
as fixed assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements

are in the name of the Company.

i1. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the

year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
“has granted unsecured loans to companies, firms or parties covered in the

register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in

respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion,

prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.



(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest

have been regular as per stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and
186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and

providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not
have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the

provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause

3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of

statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c)According to the records of the company, there are no dues of sales tax,
imcome tax, custom tax/wealth tax, value added tax, service tax, excise

duty/cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.




viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has not

issued any debentures during the vear.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence

reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported

during the year.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of

section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause

3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable

accounting standards.

xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures
and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

“%v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and



hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 322504E

v

Bharat M Bavishi
(Proprietorship)
Membership No: 056459

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28/05/2019



(Rs.)
Farticulars Nale An at 3151 As at Fist As at 151
Mo, Masch, 29 March, J0& April, I T
L |ASSETS
1 |Man - currenl asses
1) Property, plant and equd pment 4 121736 10,873,804 11,87, 54
i) Firamoial assets
i Invesmenis 5 500,00 500,00 527,000
G Trade Recorvable B0 - 3
[l Chber financial assels i) . -
el Ereferned baw asseis {ped) . 70 33285 20,535
{d) Dsher nan=narrent assess o S 1549439 = 1617169 1724479
I [Currens assels
] [nventonies 1 $1L.55,290 00,658,369 92,95 293
M1 Mmancial azsels
61 Trode receivabies &) 4,14.537 103,241 151¥
[Ah Cash andd cash ecquivalenis 11 11.51,503 HEBATS 43,70,448
{6y Laans 12 A07.84,631 25579810 L52L.66,451
vk bver fenancial assets T B.64.620 Q4T 5eT AT AT
[ch Current ta st (net) L] e, - - 185,070
] UMher cirrent asaes i) 113873 43559957 116,133 B8N 1,442,737 AR5
Talal Assets 441,39 30 404,17,635 35947065 |
—_— _—
1, |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I |Equity
1) Equity Share cagital 1 24,550,000 2450000 24,50,000
{1 Ohtheer Fquity 14 3.84,76,122 4,1,26,122 346,91,196 37141196 LI E9. 20 4.27.39,249
Liahtlitios
2 [Mon-Current liebilities
tad Financial labdlities
(1 Cnber fimancial abilities 161} 2932500 298,500 26,78, 510 2938500 20,538,500 250
F |Varent Labililics
(o] Frnancial Halsdities
fiiy Trade pavanles 15 1&,280 - b ]
(i) Other financial habiliigs 16{i) 5410 35400 37,130
18] Luarrent tax leatildines (pet) 7 129566 2001388 -
i) Oithwer current Labelitiog 18 93,518 101,154 3,047
LTRTTE 337841 2697
Total Equity anil Tiabilitles 4.,41,79,3% T amavsss) T
T s ST e ———
The accamyparning notes | wa 27 are an maegral
jrart of the stanclalane financeal smtemonts

AS per our repont of even date attached.

Fer Bavishi & Bavish: Associates
Churterl Ag s

Tirm's Rigtstratin I225KE

A Eh
Propriefar
Menthership Sn, (56454

Thaie of Sigaatan: Kelkata
Drailie: 2H/052005

. 3
For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.

Four and Gn bedalf of the Board of Dieecions

Manaj Kumar Bhagat

For HindustH&Hf Tea & Trading Co. Ltd. !

A 3/_]L —

Asnvin S Mokt '
[DIRfCraR)|

Director

Director




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD
STATEMENT OQF [’Rﬂm_ﬂND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019
h [Ks.)
Farticulars MNote Year Year
Mo, ended 31zt ended 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018
I |Revenue from operations 19 60,85,992 60,356,416
IL fHber income 20 14,40,474 10,31.180
IIL {Total ineomae (I+11) 75,26, 466 70,567,594
IV. |Exprenses:
Changes in inventories i | - -
Depreciation 22 62,145 24,060
Dther expenses B 25,686,136 15.34.819
Total expenses [IV) 2E,30,284 16,18,87%
V. |Profit before tax (ITI-IV) 48,956,182 54,48,717
VL |Tax expense 24
Current taxes 10,92, 200 10,635,600
MAT Credit entitlement 16,861 (16,861)
| Tax Adjustment for Previous Year {3,384) (23,2200
Deferred tax 5582 (3,750
11.11.257 10,189,770
VIL | Profit for the year {V-V]) 37.54 925 44 28 S48
VI Other Comprehensive Income 25
{1} Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - (27,000}
{)  Income tax relating to items that will not be i -
reclassified to Profit or Loss
‘Total Other Comprehensive Income [27.000)] .
IX. |Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIII) 37,684,925 44,071,945 |
X. |Earnings per equity share (Woninal salue per share & T02) 76
- Basic (¥} 15.45 18.08
- Dhiluted () 15.45 15.08
MNumber of shares used in computing 2,458,000 245,000
The accompanying notes 1 to 27 are an integral
part of the standalone financial statements
& . ¥
As per our report of even date attached. For Hinduethan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.
For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants r ;
Director
._(. Mangj kumar Bhagat
Wy (DIRECTOR)
Membership No. 056459 g R ] 2 '
B A For Hindusthan, Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.
o e 8 -
Ashiwin é ehta
Place of Signature: Kollata (DIRECTOR) Director
Drate: 28/05,/2019




HIND

Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 318t March, 2018

N TEA & TRADIN

L LTD

Year ended 315t March 2019

Year ended 318t March 2018

A CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING AGTIVITIES

et Prefit before exceptional items and extra ardinary ifems 48,956,182 54,48, 717
Adjustments for
Dimunition in value of investment (27.000)
Depresiation 52,148 84,050
Interest Recelvad {14, 40,474) [13,78,328) [10,31,180) 19.74,120]
Operating profit before working capltal changes 35,17.B56 4474597
Increase ! (Decrease] in Trade Payable 16,280 127,710)
Incresse ! (Cecreasa) in Mon-cument & Current Provisions - -
Decrease ! (increasa) in Trade and ather receivables (3.11,696) (BB,110)
Increase ! (Decrease) in Clher current liabifities (T.636) (1,08,323)
Increase ! (Decrease) in Cther financial Eabilities 10 11,730}
{Increase) / Dacrease in Ciher financial assets 82,947 1110}
{Increase] f Decrease in Other Non-curment and Gurrent Assets 2,180 26,604
{Increase] / Decrease i Inventaries - =]
Cash ganerated from operations 32,599,921  42ED21A.08
Direct Tanes Paid -1177447 -637062
Met cash used in operating activities 21,22,415 3643156.08
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Tangible Assets -
Revaluation of Invasimants - 27,000
Loans givan (48,69, 821) {66,13,359]
Interest Receivad 14,40,474 10,31,180
Met cash flow from [ (used in) Investing activities {34,29,347) [55.55,179)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paid {including Dividend Tax) i a
Net cash fiow from financing activities - -
Increase ! {Docreass) In cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) {13,06,222) [15,12,023)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24,58,425 43,770,448
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the year 11,51,503 24,58,425
Components of cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hang 13,958 21,87
Wiith Schedulog Banks on
Current Accounts 11,37,545 24,36, 554
Total Cash & Cash Equivadents | Nete 11] 11,511,503 24,58 4325

1] The abeue Cash Flow Statereent hai been prepared under the " Indirect Method ™ as set out b the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 en Statement of

Cazh Hows.

3|

4

Figura in brackets represent cash outfic fram respective activition.

5] Az braakus of Cash and cash equkalents i sbo available in Note Ne. 13, recensiliation of iterns of Cash and cash equivalonts as par Cash Flaw

2] Procesds repayment] of from Shert-tarm borrowings quaify for dizelssurs an ret basis,

Cash and cash equivaients do et include any amount which is nat available te the Company far it use,

tatement with tha respsctioe iterns reported in thi Bafance Shest iz not requined and henca rat gravided.

The aceemparying nates 1 to 27 are an integral part of the stardalars finarsial statements,
A5 pur ur report of even date aMeched.

For Bavichi & Bavishi Assoctatis

hbemberchifi Mo, (56459

Flace-ul Signatare holkala
Date: 2805,211%

For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd. ]

Far and on bakeH §f the Board of Directors

Manej Kumar Bhagas
|DIRECTCR)

For Hindusthan Tea & Tr

Hahwin §, ko

(DIRCCTOM)

ading Co. Ltd.

i

Director

Director




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO, LTD

Balance & at
1st April, 2018

Changes in equity share
cipital during the VEar

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCIH, 2019
(2} Equity share capital
For the year ended 315t March, 2079 [Rs.} For the year ended ¥1st March, 2018

s}

Balance as at
31st March, 2019

Balance as at
1st April, 2017

Changes in equity share
capital during the vear

Balance as at
15t March, 308

Flace of Signature: Kolkata
Drate; 28405/2019

For Hindusthan Tea

Ashiwin 5.
[DIRECTOR

24.50,000 - 24,550,000 24,530,000 24,50,000
(b} Other equity | s}
Reserves and surplus Tutal
Capital Reserve Retained earnings
Balance ag at 15t April, 2015 35,000 3,468,286 106 3,468,891 196
Profit for the year - 37.84,925 AT B4 925
ther comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year = - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 65,050 3.84,11,032 3,84.76.122
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 65,080 30224159 3,02,80,249
Prodit for the vear - a4 28 948 44 75 84a
(Hher comprehensive tcomse (Toss) for the year - (27,000 (27,000
Balance as at 31=t March, 2015 65,090 3,46,26,106 3,46,91,196
The accompanying notes 1 bo 27 are an integral part of the standalone financial
statements.,
Az per our report of even date sttached.
For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates For and on behalf of the Board of [hrectors
Chartered Accowstbants
Firm's Regisfration No. - 322504F For Hindusthan Tea & Trading,Co. Ltd.
~
CA. Bharat.M, A n Manaj Kurnar Bhagat
% : 2 - oY, BIRE " ;
Proprictor \EinbgTon) Director
Membership Mo, 056459 "

ading Co, Ltd,
[

Director




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD
Nete Forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement

1 Corporate information
Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd. {'the Company™] is a public fimited entity Incorporated in india and Is engaged in the business of real estate.
Its registered office is situated at 5 185 Halden Avenue, Silver Arcade 1st floor, Kelkata- 700105, The financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2019 worg
Approved by the Board of Directors and is subject to the adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Anpual General Meeting,
2 Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statemant of Cormpliance with Ind AS
These financial staternents have been prepared in accardance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A5) notified under Section 133 of the Campanies act, 2013, The
financial statemanits have also been preparad in accordsnce with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies act, 2013, The Comgpany adopted Ind A%
fram 1st April, 2017, Up ta the year ended 315t March, 2019, the Cormpany prepared its financial statements In accordance with the requirements of previaus
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAR), which ingledes Standards notified under the Companies [Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, These are the
Cempany's first Ing A5 fmancial staterments. The date of transition to Ind A5 s 15t Aprid, 3017,
1.2 Basls of preparation
The financizl statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost comvention, except for cartain items that are measured &t fair values, as explained in
the accounting poficies, Historical cost is ganerally based on the fair value of the tonsideration in exchange for goods and services
Fair Value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurernent date, regardless of whether that price is directly ebservable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair vatue of an asset or
a liakslity, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset ar liakality if market participants would take those characteristics inte account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
All amount disclosed in the financial staternents including notes thereon have been rounded off to the nearest rupees as per the requirement of Schedule 1l 1o the
Act, unless stated otherwise.
23 Lize of estimates
The preparztion of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires management Lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the applicatien
of the acceunting policies and the reported amounts of assets and Gabilities, the disclosure of contingent asiets and Gabilities at the date of the financil
statements, and the reported amounts of revenves and expenses during the year. Actual results ceuld differ fram those estimates. The estimates and underlying
aswmptians are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recogrised in the period In which the estimate is revised if the revision affects|
enky that geriod; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future perlads if the revision affects bath current and future periods.
2.4 Operating Cycle
All assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedula 111 Lol
the Comparies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statemants, Based on the nature of products and their realization in cash and cash eruavalents,
the company has ascertained operating cecles for its manufacturing business as bess than 12 manths and for its real estate business as & years from the date of
inception of the project and less than 12 months 35 on this balance sheet date, for the purpase of turrent or aen-current classification of assets and liablities,
2.5 Property, plant and egquipment [PPE] and Depreciation
a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depeeciation and impairment, if ary. Far this perpose, cost
includes deemed cost which represents the carmng value of PPE recognised as at 15t April, 2006 measured as per the previous GAAP
b Cost s inclusive of inward freight, non-refundable taxes and duties and directly attributable costs of bringing an awtet ta the location and condition of its Jntﬂﬂdedl
use. in respect of major projects involving construction, refated pre-operational expenses farm part of the value of assets capitalised. Cxpenses capitatiised aka
inclede applicable borrowing costs for gualifying assets, if any. Al wpgradation / enhancements are charged off a5 revenue exgenditure uniess thay bring similar
signifecant additional benefies.
The cost and refated accumulated depreciation are derecagnised fram the financial statemants upca sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or
losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
<) Depeeciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which 15 generally on commissioning. Depreciation on fterms of FPE is
aravited on a Straight Line tMethod "SLA') basis to allocate thiir cost, nat of their residual valoe over the estimated useful ife of the respective asset as spacifiad in
Schedule Il to the Companies act, 2013, ]
\
The estimated usedul bves of PPE of the Company are as follows: | II'
L |
Flant and equipment \ | Ao i 15 years
Furniturg and fixtures e 10years
Oiffice equiperent b, 4 5 years
Computers g 2 3 years
The estimated useful livas, residual values and method of depreciation are reviewed at each Balance sheet gate and are and changas, if any, are treated as changes
in accounting estimate.
L6 Inwestrment Property:

Aninvestment in land or Bulldings, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, is classified 35 ivestment
property, inwestment progerties are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lossos, if any.
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For shis purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of Irvestment Fraperty recognised as at 1st April, 2018measured as per tha
previaus GAAP

Cost i inclusive of inward freight, non-refundable tases and duties and directty attributable costs of bringing an asset 1o the lncation and condition of its intended
use. In respect of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalised. Expenses capitalised also

include applicable borrawing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All upgradation / enhancerments are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar
significant additional benefiis,

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are derecognised from the financial statements upan sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or
losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assefs are ready for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. Depreciation en items of
Investment Properly i provided on a Straight Line Method ('SLM’) basis to allocate their cost, net of their residual value over the estimated useful life of she|
respective asset as specified in Schedula 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives of Investrent Property of the Company is B3 years

The estimated useful fives, residual vatues and method of depreciation are reviewed at each Batance sheet date and are and changes, if any, are treated as changes
Im accounting estimate,

Impakrment of Assets

Froperty, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoversbility whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate what the carnang amaounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the armcunt by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
i the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the kwest levels far which thare are separately identifiable cash flows [cash-generating units)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asser.

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transsctions ara taken into account. IF o such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
madel is used. These calculations are corraborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for pubdicly traded companies or other available fais value indicators.

It at the balance sheet date there is an indication that 3 previcusly assessed impairment kass no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
impairment loss previously recognized is reversed such that the asset is recognized at its recoverable armount but not exceeding written down value which would]
have been reported if the impairment inss had not been recopnized.

Inventories

Finished Premises and Comtruction Wark in Progress: Fnished Premises and Construction ‘Work in Progress are valued at lower of cost and net reslizable value.
Costs include all expenditures directly relating to construction activity and all indirect expenditures atibutable ta such construction activity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sala,

Building raterials purchased specifically for the project are taken as consumed as and when Fecaived.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Provisicns, contingent labilities and contingent assets

a} Provisions are recagnized only when there is a present obligation, a5 a result of past events and when a refiable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewad at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current Best estimates, Provisians arie discounted ta their
present values, where the time value of money 15 material.

B} Contingent liatality s disciosed for possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not whelly within the control of the Company o present
obligations arising from past events where it i net probable that an outflow of rescurces will e required to settle the obligation of & reliable ostimaze af the
amount of the obligation cannot be made,

€] Contingant assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realsation of income is virtually certain, related asset is dsclosed,

d) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

Financial instruments, Financial assets, Financial liabilities and Eguity instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant instrurment and are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributabie to the scquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilitics {other than financial|

assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through peofit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair walue an initial recognition of financial 3ssets or
financial labilities.

I} Financial Assets
{a} Recognition

Financial assets include Investments, Trade recelvables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances etc, Such sssets are initially
recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party o contractual ohligations. The transaction price includes transaction codts unless the asset is
Bbeing fair valued through the Statesment of Profit and Loss.

[o] Classification

Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquirad. The subseguent
rmeasuramant of financial assets depends an such classification,

Financial assets are classified as those rmeasured at:
(2] amartised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of eash flows arising from payments of principal and/ or interes




212

(2} Fair value through other comprehensive income (YT, where the financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of
principal and interest but also from the sale of such assers, Such assers are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from
charzes in the fair value being recognized in other comorehensive income.

(3] Fair valpe through profit or loss |FYTPL), whera the assets does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at amartized cost or as FYTOCL, Such assats are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the geriad in which thew arise.

Trade recetables, Advances, Security Degosits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances etc. are classified for measurement at amortised cost while investments

may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. Howewer, In respect of particilar investrents in equity instrments that would otherwise be measured at f2ir valuel
through profit or loss, an irrevocable election st initial recognition may be made to present subsequent changes In fair valua through other comgrehensive incarme

{e} Irmpairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as investrnents, trade receivables, advances and security]
deposits held ot amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at falr value thraugh other comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on
wadance of infarmation that is avaitable without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss alipwances recognised i the credit quality of thed

Financial asset has deteriorated sanificantly gince initial recoonition.
[d} Redassification

When and anly when the business model is changed, the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets prodpectively fram the reclassification date as)
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, fair value through profit or loss without restating the presicusly
recagnised gains, losses of Interest and in terms of the reclassification principles laid dawn in the Ind AS relating 1o Financial instrumants

(e] De-recognition
Firancial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash fiows from the assets has expared, or has been transferred, and the Company has transfarred
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, If the asset is cne that |5 measured at-

{il amuortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the Statement af Profit and Loss;

{iil fair value through other comprehansive income, the curmulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit
ang Loss unless the asset reprasents an eguity investment in which case the cumislagve fair value adjustments previously taken o reseres is reclassified within
ejuity.

I} Financial Gakilities
Sorrowings, trade payables and other financial kabilities are Initally recognised at the value of the respective contractual obligations, They are subsequently
measured at amartised cost.

Financial liabilities are derecognisad when tha lability is extinguished, that is, when the cantractuzl obligation i dischasged, cancelled and on expiry.

i) Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the procesds, net of direct costs of the capital issue,

iw) Dffserting of financial instruments
Financial assets and fiabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceabie right w0 offser the recognised
arnounts and thers is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the ability simultanecusly.

w) Dividend distribution
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the intarim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the
final dividend when approved by sharehaolders,

Wi} Fair walue measurement

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Under ing A%, fair valuation of financial instruments is guided by ind AS 123 “Fair
Value Measurement” (ind A5 - 113).

For some assets and [ibilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For cther assets and liabilities, observable market
transactions and market information might not be available, However, the objective of a fair value measurement in bath cases is the same—to estimate the price at
which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants a8 the measurement date under current
market conditions,

In getermining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a3 variety of methods and assuemptions that are based on market conditiens and risks
existing at each balance sheat date.

Tha Comgany uses the fallowing hierarchy for datarmining and declasing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Lewved L: OQuoted poices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Leved 2: Inputs other than queted prices included within Level 1 that are absesvable for the asset or fiakility, either @Grectly o indirectly.
Lewed 3: Inputs far the assets or liabilities that are not based on abservable market data junobservable inputs).

Taxes
Taxes an incarme comparsses of current taxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Staterment of Profit and Loss is provided as the amaount of tax payable in respect)
of taxable income for the period wsing tax rates and tax laws enacted during the perspd, together with any adiustment 1o tax pavable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recagnised on temporary differences between the carming amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used ler tasation purposes [Lax Base),
at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantivaly enacted by the end of the regorting period,

Deferred tax aisets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of enused tax credits and any unused tax los5es o the extent that it 15
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and eoused 1ax ke
can be utilised,

The: carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheat date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxatiol
profit will be available ve allow all or part of the deferred tax asaets to be utiliged,
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Income tax, in 50 far as it relates to items disclosed under ather comgrehensive income oF equity, are disclosed separately under other camprehansive income or
equity, as applicable,

Enrnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peripd attributable to equity sharehalders {after deducting attributable taxes) by the
weighted-average number of equity shares cutstanding during the pariod.

For the purpose of caleulating dilirted earnings per share, the net profit or less for the pericd attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted-average number
af shares putstanding during the period are adjusted for the ‘effects of all dilutive patential equlty shares,

The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share split and bones shares jssues
including for changes effected pricr to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whaereby profit/loss before tas is adjusted For the effects of transactions of @ ren-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or paymants and itern of income or expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flaws fram
aperating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated,

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statemants in confarmity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and BFSUMPTIORS
that affect the reperted amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilisies at the date of the financial statements and the results of

operatians during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are Based upon managernent’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resuls
could differ fram thess astimates.

Tha estmates and underlying assumnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the poriod in which the estimate
Is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and futura periods if the revision affects both current and future periads,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The follawing are the key assumptions concerning tha future, and other key sources of estimation uncertzinty at the end of the reporting period that may have 3
snificant risk of causing a material sdjustrment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial e,

(i} Lseful lives of property, plant and equipment:

FPE represent a significant progartion of the asset base of the Company, The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of
an assel’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its fife. The wseful lves and residual value of the asset are determined by the
management when the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at each financial vear end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
azsats as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their lives, such as change in technology.

(i} Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

The fair values of financial instrumants that are not traded in an active market and cannot be measured based on guoted prices in actve markets is determined
using valuation technigues. The Group uses its judgement to select 3 varlaty of method / methods and make assumptions that are mainky based an rmarkes
conditions existing at the end of each financial vear.

The inputs to thesa modals are taken from observable markets where possible, but whese this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values, Judgements include consideratsons of inputs such as liquidity risk, credst risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these Factors could affect the
regorted fair value of financial istrwmant.

[i] Frovisions and contingent Rabilities

The Comgany has ongoing litgations with various regulatory authoritics and third parties. Where an outflow of funds s believed to be probable and a reliabie
estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstancas of each dispute and relevant extarnal advies,
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Notes to Financial Statements [Contd..)

HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Mote Ma: 6 Trade receivables (Carried at amortized cost)

1] Non-Current
i As at 31st As at 31st As at 1st
Parliculars
March, 2019 March, 2018 April, 2017
Unsesuaresd, considered good = =
Total - . =
{if)  Current
i A at 3 st As at 3lst As at Ist
March, 2019 March, 2015 April, 2017
Unsegured, considered good 4,14,937 103,241 13,131
Total 414,937 143,241 15.131
Mote Mo: T Other financial assets (Carried at amortised cost)
(i} MNon-current (Unsecured, considered good)
Pacticulirs A at 3st As al 31st As at 1st
March, 2019 March, 2018 April 2017
Taotal - - -
(i)  Cwrrent (Unsecured, considered good)
: As at 31st Az at 3]st As at 15t
Particulars -
March, 29 Mlarch, 2015 April 2017
Security deposits B5d,620 9,47 567 947,457
Total 864,620 9.47.567 947,457
Mote Mo B Current lax assets (net)
- As al 31s1 As at 31st Asal Isl
Parliculars -
March 2019 March, 2013 April, 2017
Advance tax 24,580,070
Le=a: Prowision for Taxation 23, 05,000
Total - = LE5ATO




Muote
(i}

Moe 9 Other assets
Man=Cument (Unsecured, considered good)

Particalara As at 315t As at 31st As at Ist
March, 2019 March, 2018 April 2007
Cithers s E
Total - - -
(i}  Current (Unsecured, considered good) "
Particelars As at 315t As ab 31st As at 1st
March, 2019 March, 2018 April 2n7
Advance w Supplices and others 1,933 1,533 1,833
Others:-
Mddvance for Kegistration 1,100,300 1,710,300 110,500
Taxes/duties 1,740 3,500 504
Tutal 1,13,973 116,133 142,737
Mote Moz 10 Inventories (Valoed at lower cost and net realisable value)
i Ag ab 3st As at 31st As at 1st
Particulars
March, 2019 March, 2008 April,2n7
Inventories 92,958,793 02,95,293 92.05.293
Tutal 92,595,293 92,95,293 92,95,2493
Mote No: 11 Cash and cash equivalents
; As at 3]st As at 31st As at 1st
Particulars
March, 2019 March 2018 April 2017
a) Balances with Banks
O ocurrent aecounts 1137545 24,356,554 423,36.643
b Cash on Hand 12,958 .87 33,305
Total 11,51,503 24,58425 43,70 448]
Mate Mot 12 Loans- Current (Carried at amorfised cost)
(i} Current
. As at 31st As at 31s1 As at 1st
Pariculars =
March,z019 March, 2018 April 217
Unsecured, considered good
Eepayable on Demand
Loans and advances to related partes 1,13.51,062 949812 69.05,562
Loans and advances to others 1,9%,593.569 1.59,29.998 1,267,589
Tatal 3,07, 49631 2,58,79.510 1,92,66,451




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Males bo Financial Statesests (Conld.)

Mobe Mo.: 13 Equily shase capital

Particulars As al 31a0 As al 51st s at 1st
March, 2019 Mlaxch, 2014 Aprid, 207
o of shares F Mo, ol shares a . of shares -
(2] Aulhorised
Equity shares of par value ¥ 10/- each T, 000 1,00,00, 030 10,080,000 1.00,00,000 10 HLOM 1,00,00, 000
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,04,00,000
(B lasued, subscribed and fally paid ap
Equuty shares of par valis: T 10/ - each 2.45,000 24, 50,000 245,000 2, 30,000 245,000 24,5000
24, 50,000 24,500,000 24,51LINH)
ic) Heconeilistiom of numhber and amount of equity shares oulstanding:
[Particutars As al 31st March, 219 As at 315t March, 5015 As at 1ed April, 2007
Me of shases . Mo, of shares| 2 Mo of shares
A% the beginning of the year 245000 £4,50,000 746000 | &4 50,000 245000 £4,50.000
AL the end of Lhe year 245000 2450000 245,000 i 24 50,000 245 000 24 53,000

(d] Tl Campany has anly one class of equity shases., The Comgany declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The holders of aquity shares are ontitied
to receive divideed as declared from time bo time and are entitled b one il prer share

teb  Imothe event of lguedation of *I\J.-'I:'ucr:pun}'_. the halders nl'n:||:|l_l.l shams will be entitled to receive Fosnaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all prederential dues, The disizibation will be in praparticn te the number of equity shares beld by the sharehalders.,

_HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Modes (o Financlal Satemsents (Combd..)

Mude Mo, 0 14 Other equily

Partivislass * Asal 31 s at st Mg ak 1st
March, 2% March, 2014 April, 2017

{a) Capital reserve

Halamce as per last accouni 65,050 58,080 55,060
Clesing balance

(b Retained earnings
Halare as per lost accouni 348,20, 107 3.02.24,158 2,58,65,876
Adid: Net Prafat for the vear 37,54 928 44,01 246 43,589,283

Adid: Dthir comprehensive income - - -

for the vear

Clising balance 3,84,11,032 3,448,28107 3,02,24,158

3,84,76,122 3,46,91,157 3,085,249
—_— —— ]




Notes to Financial Stalements (Contd..)

MNaote No: 15 Trade Payables

HINDUST

e e s =l

HAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Particulars As at 31st As al 31st As at 1st
March, 2019 March, 2018 April, 2017
Current =)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises® -
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micre enferprises and small enterprises: 16,280 27,710
Total 16,280 27,710
“There are no sutstanding dues to micre and small enterprises,
Mote No: 16 Cther current financial liabilities
(i) Mon-current
Particulars A at 3st As at 3sl Asat st
March, 2019 March, 2015 April, 2017
Other Payables
Security Deposits 2338500 20,38, 500 24,08, 500
Total 29,38, 500 29.38,500 25,38.500
(ith Current
i As af st As at T1st | As al 1st
Particulars -
March, 2019 March, 2016 Apnil, 2017
Uther Payables
Accrucd expenses 410 35,400 7,1
Audit Fees Fayable 35,000
Total 35410 35,400 37,130
Note Moz 17 Current tax liabilities (net)
| - As at 31st As at 3lst As at 1st
| Particulars -
| March, 2019 March, 2018 April, 207
Prowvision for Taxation 3222800 21,530,600 L
Less: MAT Credit entitlement = 158,861 |
Loss: TS AND Adwvance tax ETC H,53,204 1912352
Total 1,29 560 2,001,388 -
MNete No: 18 Other carrent liabilities
Particulars As at Flst As at Flst As at1sd
e March, 2019 March, 2018 April, 17
Other Advances
Advance from customers - - 2,013,986
Oithers
| Statutory Dues U151k 101,154 441
Teual 53518 101,154 24477 |




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Motes to Financial Stabements as af and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Mate Mo: 19 Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Flst March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rental Income 573,192 58,064,930
Maintenance Charges received 3,222,300 171,486
Total 60,535,992 B0.36.416
MNote Mot 20 Other Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Hsk March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Interest Income
Interest on Loans 14,12,491 10,006,658
Interest on CESC Deposit 27.959 24,482
Interest on IT refund M -
Tatal 14,40,474 10,31,150
Mote No: 71 Changes in inventories of Finished goods
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Finished Goods
Closing Stock 92,953,293 52,595,293
Less:Crpening Stock g 92,953,293 92,953,295
Taotal -
Note Nos 22 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
I k-pmﬁ.ﬂ.iun of property, plant and equipments (Kefer 62148 84.060
Mote na, 4)
Total 62,148 54,060




Maote Ma: 23 Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 Flst March, 2018
Advertisement 22860 16,305
Andit Feas 35,000 35,000
Hank Charges 1,422 1.674
Convevance Expense = 230
Corporation Tax 9,29,470 £.83,945
Flectricity Charges 5.009 3700
liling Fees 2,600 4379
Insurance 4,925 5604
Interest On Government Liabilitios -
Lease Fent 6,107 6,107
].I:-'l‘in?_ Fee 25,000 28,750
Maintanence Charges 11,20,854 245,055
Miscellanous expense 5,439 899
Professional Charges 354,800 293,250
Professional Tax{Company) 2,500 2,500
Subscription 10,000 5,000
Trade Licence 2150 230
Total 75,68,136 15,534,619
Mate No. : 24 Tax expense
(i) Mon-current
) Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March, 2019 March, 2013
Current tax 10.92.200 TS0
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods (23,2200
Total current tax expenses 10,92,200 10,40,380
Deferred tax expense 5,582 [3,750)
MAT Credit Entitlement - (16,561}
Tax Expense 10,57, 782 10,195,770
Mote Moz 25 Other comprehensive income
- Year ended Year ended
March, 2019 March, 2015
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Fevaluation of quoted investments at fair value (27.000)

{27,000




HINDUSTHAN TEA £ TRADING CO. LTD

Mobes 1o arcounts

Nede Mo, : 26 Othar disclosures

1L Thwen are ra contingent liabilities which have nea been provided dar by the tompany.

> Thar company s not received asy memarandum {as required 1o b fled by the suppliers with the notfied autharity undes the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Thevelopmesnn Ay, 008} claiming thir status as on 31 March 2009 as micra, small and sediam enterprises, Conseguently, the amount due to macro and  small
erARTpEises di per requineenent of Section 22 of the Mo, Small arsd Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is %l (21t March 2017 « b} (15E Apeil 2006 - Mil)

4] Mame af the related partics and description of relationship :

i Ky Masnagerial Fersonnel
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bhagat
Mr, Aslwin Shantilal Mehia
Mir. Amiritansh Bhagad
Mr. Dharmesh Mehita
ks, Archana Sharma

d} Enlecprises over which KM Bave infuesce;
A MNervan Buiklers Pt Lid.- Mr. Amritansh Bhagat & ibe Commaon Dirociar
Dengal Sdlver Speing Projects Lid. - Mr. Manaj Kamar Dhagat (s s Carrmen Directar

3 Earnings per share
SL Mo, Tarticulars Wear Tear
g ended Ha caded Ha1
Bollarch, To1Y March, 24
aj Amoun: used as the numymun;'tj
Profit far the wear - [A) 37,684,525 44,278,548
L] Weighted averape number of cquity shares cutstanding used a3 the denominates G cumputing Bask II
Earniegs per share - (B] 245,000 245000
& | Wedghted average number of equuty shares oulstanding wd a5 the denominaior far computing Diluted 145,000 245,000
! |earnings paer share - 600
] Mominal valise of equity shares (3) 10,080 10,00
#l Hasic varnings per share () [(ASH) 1545 18,08
i Diluted carmings per share {T1 (A/C) 1545 1508
4 Bebated panty dischoseres |




] Transactions with Related partics :

e |Ra,|
Hay
Sigmificani Mangerial
Matuwre af iramaaction / inflaence Fersonmel
Mame of the related party anlities (KR Todal
Advance Clven
Opemng Belances 21, ¥r) 81,090,000 . B1,00,000
[ (52, 50,000) - (S2.50,000]
Addilics Dhering, the ¥ (O, Yeb 12.00,000 - 13,00,000
iFr. Y11 128, 50,000} - (28.50,000)
Repayment During iy (Cw. Yo = = .
(e, Yr) - - =
Closing Balanres . Yy 94,00,007 - £4,00,000
Pr.¥m) 1B1,00.000) - (81,00,000)
|
Pralessianal Charges (Cu ) - 24,000 24,000 |
o Amchane Sharma Pr. YE) - o, 000 (24, 00

#) Fhe transaclans with related parties have been enterd al an amount which are not materially different from those on normal cemmersial ferms.

i curmnd yesr and previaus year for bud or doabtful debls & respect of the amounts owed by rolated parties,

@l Ihe remuneration of directors & determined Fry Uhe remanerabion comamitie: having regard 1o the perfarmsance of individuals

and market rends,

] Figumes in brackets pertain @ previous year,

Kansring in wiesw: the natune of eperations of the Company, the requaipemenais for quantitative ditails are not applicable ta

conslis tom basiness and accardingly nat fumished.

) [he ampants outstandang ane unsecwsed and will be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given or neeived, Mo expense has been roeognised

Fspeslitare i foreign currency )
Partiulars Year ¢oded Tear eended
Jlst March, 2014 pa il h“mh,.m’l_ﬁ
B Nil Ng
Inizme in (ureign comenay = 1]
1antiulars Year ended Wear ended

st March, 2019

Iled hlarch, 2018

il




HINDUSTHAN TE ING L LTD
Koten o accounts frombd |
Mot i 26 Oiher discloseres feontsd]
L3 Finaneial instrements - Arcaunting, Clasllcation arell Fadr value pwasaremcnls '
N Finunrlal instvas eais by oategary
e at A0el March JHF [Es.|
N Fagticulas Tkl Cogrying value
Refer - Tatal
o Neots Mo, Fair Vishsr LUaat Devmed cosl | Ameclized sl | PeTo0T | FYTPL
[1] Finamcial assety
il Irversimenis 3 500,000 700 - - 527000
[ Teade and cther cosivablon & 414.ar EREN: ) - - - ERIN: )
() Caxh and cesh cownlrmin n' 11550 1385 ; 4 ¥ . 43,052
(] Bk habmwos aiheor than cash -
e vasd: eguivalents 1 11,537,548 11,37 58 - - ! - 11,37, 585
5] Loans 1 107 ASEM | 307,48.631 - - - 307 40801
i Oither lirsreind sris 7 824 30 BEAGZD - - BG& 20
Tekal 036 0065 | 3,37 07,601 - - - 337,07 801
] Fimancial Habisito
fal Horrmwings 3 . 3 2
i Tanals: pomal ol prrpabfis ik 18,280 96,280 - - - - 16280
(8] Cliher firineial lahilmes in 79,33 500 | 2038500 A - 2930400
Total 7,54, 7a0 2058 THD - - v - 2054780
L s
| [
Aok Flat Mlarch, 2006
T Kafur |
Parthcular Hule Ka. Totat 1 Camying walus
) AE— Far¥ake | oo Dosmed cost | Amomized cost | FvTD0 | PVTPL | Tosl
Financial asscis
5 5,100, [ 517000 - - 027000
i 1,05,247 10030 . . - A0
3 2107 21871 - - - ol
(5] 240000 24 30554 - = |
k) 1z BT A0 | 29079840 - - =~ =
i WCHher fmanelal acoric L] 547557 04T Z8T = -
| lTnIlt 2,02 BO043 | 25016043 = - -
I
|
i Finanelal liskilities
Boeniwings a £ - -
Pravche ared ivthior payalbies 15 = s
:I.'Hlu-rl'uumial Rl lithas Ia 25, T3 600 2073500 - = 0,173,800
| {Talal ws.:m 2071500 [ - - 3971500
|
| |
L —
Ao Tt Al 2017
Reler
sl Fatboulbars. Hale Na, Tatal Cairying vakie
e, Fair Vaius Czat Cuimad coel | Amodmed st | FuToo | Fotog Talal
(£ Financial sssets
[1] Investmmis 5 E2T.000 827000 B - - - 507000
ih1 Traike ared oiber mcemvebes h =Rk} 15,131 - - & 18,134
1 Lash arad cash oquivalenis 11 A3.808 s = - - 805
oy Bassk balanues wler than cass . 1 i - -1 - s
amil canbonmuivakongs n dhas g | s - 43,38 543
iy Lasairs Ix TURES AT | 15266451 = . T T A ST
{[F] Chber Bmancial asscis ¥ #drdsT 94T 457 - = = 3,87 857
Toial 2,61,2%,487 | 251 26407 2,651,298, 47
[ Financial labilitses
141 . . L .
[} i5 ImTin - - - = 28, 710
0] T o9.m8mn 2T 650 §
30,03, 340 - - - - 30,103,340 |
—_— .




1, Falr waluwe messmrement

Iha dair waliee ol thee financial assets and fomsrciad labibes ase inclided af the amomt ot which the isirusumt could b ochasrgged in @ Current

transatin It wilkng periies, other Hias in a derced or liquadation sale. Bor ssats where the Lk valur canmal e determised in 4 nssonable mesaoe,
thrsarrying value has bevn laken as the fals valoe

[* Firat-sime Adoption of End AS
(1] These Hrancial stafemaents, loe the poar ended Yat March, 2078, sse the fist s slabommts, the Company bas propansd in scondanos with fad 45
Avsoridingly, The Ciepany b prepansd fivancal statemsents which o ply sith Ind A% spplicalibs for pear ended S March, 2019, tavpeibe s with i
vimparative Sggunes for the yuar edod Se Mards, 208, as desceibod in e summmarny of signifioan sooniming plicios [alar Mats Mo 7]
T Cinmngenry hias prorpanad s npariirgg Ralame Sheet s pee Tl A5 s of 1t Aprd, 2010 (e tansition date) bys
a revopmimng ol assets and Babilitees whoss nxognition b naquined by Ind A%,
b not neogeising lems of assos or labikess which ans mol permitied by lnd A5,
¢ rerlaslying iems lrom previous Genenally Ao pled Ascounting Principhes (GAAR (o bad AS ax njuinsd under Ind A5, and
i applyeg Ied A% in messupemenl of ncopnied sente sad bl
il B A% W00 mandaies verlain vsorptios amd allows festdime adogacns exrmplicns tmon ihe Telsnpen Lve appication of cortae requinsmests under Id AS The Coregasy
lazappkod the leflowing cecmpiaons in e finarcnl staiements
4k Property, plest sad sxquipsient and intangible assets wore carried in the Dalance Shert prepared in socondiscr with previoss GAAT an 57st March, 3118, Useder ndd A5, e
Comnpany haw whectad o ragand such arrymg value as dormed o at the date of ansian
W Under preises GAAR, divestment n subsidlarkes, pin venbares and asssciales wire ssaied at costaml provisins made n sesiss the decling, sther i JIe—
Uniber Il 4%, tha Company las considered their pronoss GA AT camping asound as B disssid oost.
(1] L aliticn 32 the ahoss, B prcipal adjostmuss made by the Company in sestating is provious GRAR financial salemnis, inchedig the Balinos Sheet s a1 1st Apil,
LT aiidd the: Grvesacial statememisas ot il for the year cided Xst March, 398 are detilid Dk
af Undder prmnicus GAA L ik cusnent ivastsmits wen sbaled st oot Whens applicalis, prrovEnn was made o cevognis s dicline, ather thes lmperary, b valuaton ol
stk iinstmenils. Uader Ined A%, equity instrammnts fother than imrstment i subsidiscies, join vonlures ssd asocases] bave been dasafind as Fair Yalus thrugs Cilie
i Urampuehensive linvcme JFYTOCT) throsigh an e libe e ton o the date of Iranstsan
bl The prevans Endian GAAR reejuined drbereed lax sccounting using The Sacomn statopeat spproach, whach $orses un differess beteoen taneble prsfits s sooumting
(R the periesd Lind A5 LX naquines eritkes o anoeaint Tor deleenad lases wanp; B halines dia approa b, which lncsas e o poeary Jilleseiees betvom the
saiyiag amaanl o i assat on lakility in the alamo: sheet and 18 ik base, The application of Ind A% 12 ajsjpruach has rombed in rovngmition i debereed e on e
e povary oo which was o s s ervioes Indian GAAP.
+1 Rrtaived vamings andd statstmenlof profitand loas bas borm adfovied ennsspuest o e [l AS trarediion o justigents with
connzponnding, impect o delermd tws, whenoe applonhr,
3 Sepmont Keparting

The company’s bisinesa actaitity fali within a singhe business segmest e, renling of the premies. Hance, there sce no addZonad daclosures o be provided usdar
Acuunting Mandard 19 “Segmest reserting”, othar than Shoan abady provised in the isancial satements.




HINDUSTHAN TEA & TRADING CO. LTD

Note 27: Deferred Tax Computation for the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred Tax Asset - FY - 2018-19

WDV of Assets as per Companies Act
WDV of Assets as per Income Tax Act
Difference between Book & Tax Deprn.

Total of Deferred Tax Asset as on 31.3.2019

Tax Rate 25.75
Amount Deferred Tax Asset
10,21,738
11,29,321
1.07,585 27,703
27,703

As per our report of even date attached,

For Bavishi & Bavishi Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. - 322504

CA. Bharat:
Proprietor
Membership No. 056459

Place of Signature: Kolkata

Drate: 25/05/2019

For Hindusthan Tea & Trading Co. Ltd.
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Director
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